ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2006
8:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
COMM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 413
"An Act relating to the burning capability of cigarettes being
sold, offered for sale, or possessed for sale; and providing for
an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 413( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 349

"An Act relating to legislator salary and benefits; establishing
the G tizens' Comm ssion on Legislative Salary and Benefits and
defining its powers and duties and abolishing the State Oficers
Conmpensati on Conmi ssion; and providing for an effective date by
repealing secs. 9 and 12, ch. 124, SLA 1986."

- MOVED CSHB 349( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 413

SHORT TI TLE: BURNI NG CAPABI LI TY OF Cl GARETTES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOULE

02/ 01/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 06 (H) STA, JUD, FIN
02/ 09/ 06 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 349

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 9, 2006



SHORT TI TLE: COWM SSI ON ON LEG COWP. & ALLOWANCES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 09/ 06 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 6/ 06

01/ 09/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 09/ 06 (H) STA, FIN

01/ 26/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 26/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 26/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 09/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE REGA E JOULE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 413.

CRAI G GOCODRI CH, Fire Chi ef

Muni ci pality of Anchorage;

Menber

Fire Chiefs' Association in Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 413.

JACK KRILL, Fire Chief

Central Matanuska Fire Depart nent

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 413.

WARREN B. CUMM NGS, Fire Chief

Cty of Fairbanks;

Pr esi dent

Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the 129 nenbers of
AFCA in support of HB 413.

CAROL R REED, President

Al aska State Firefighters Association (ASFA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Her testinony on behalf of ASFA in support
of HB 413 was read by M chael Tilly.

M CHAEL TILLY, Fire Chief

Cty of Kenai;
Menber

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2006



Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 439.
GARY POVELL, Director

State Fire Marshall

Central Ofice

D vision of Fire Prevention

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 413.

JEFF JOHNSON, Presi dent

Western Fire Chiefs Association (WCA)

Portl and, Oregon

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: On behalf of the association, urged the
commttee to pass HB 413.

ANDREW Mc GUI RE

San Franci sco, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the National Fire
Associ ation Protection, based in Massachusetts, in support of HB
413.

MARGE LARSON

Anmeri can Lung Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 439.

JACQUELI NE TUPQU, St af f

to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Weyhr auch, sponsor of HB 349.

DAN WAYNE, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
349.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
VICE-CHAIR CARL GATTO called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:08:10 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Ranras, and Gardner were present at the

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2006



call to order. Representati ve Gruenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 413- BURNI NG CAPABI LI TY OF Cl GARETTES

8:09:12 AM

VI CE CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 413, "An Act relating to the burning capability
of cigarettes being sold, offered for sale, or possessed for
sale; and providing for an effective date."

8:09:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REGA E JOULE, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
testifying as sponsor of HB 413, said the bill would require
cigarette conpanies to change the way their cigarettes burn,
which in turn wll prevent fires caused by snoldering
cigarettes. Currently, he said, cigarettes are designed to burn
all the way to the end when | eft unattended. He i1ndicated that
there was sone interest in the past to have a cigarette nade
that burned nore slowy, but the cigarette conpanies were
opposed to the idea. He explained that the way a cigarette is
made to burn slowy is by putting bands in a couple places on
the cigarette, the effect of which is to cause the cigarette to
slow its burning and then to "shut off."

8:13: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said the State of New York adopted this |aw
in 2000, and approximately 40 percent of the cigarette conpanies
have adapted their product, thus far. Canada passed a simlar
| aw nati onw de. The states of Vernont and California adopted
the law in 2005. Representative Joule noted that Al aska is one
of several states considering this law, currently Hawaii and
Washi ngton are also discussing the possibility. He stated that
the technology already exists. Representative Joule, having
previously admtted to being a cigarette snoker, suggested that
if there is a cost associated with the bill, perhaps those who
snoke may be the ones to carry sonme of the cost. He reiterated
that the bill is about safety and saving |ives. If Al aska
adopts this legislation, he said, it wll put pressure on the
U.S. Congress to do the sane.

8:15:16 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 4- February 9, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said having been born in Alaska he is

aware of "the scarcity of choice.” He said he is not a snoker,
but wants to ensure that all brands will be available under this
I aw.

8:16: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE answered that because the technology has
existed for a long time, he thinks all brands would be avail abl e
once the requirenent is mandat ed.

8:16:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what the reaction of ~cigarette
manuf act urers has been.

8:16:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE offered his understanding that the reaction
has been a m xed one. He said he thinks Phillip Mrris supports
the effort now, but was opposed to it initially. He said, "I

think they m ght be seeing the tide change."
8:17:21 AM

CRAIG GOODRICH, Fire Chief, Mnicipality of Anchorage; Menber,
Fire Chiefs' Association in Alaska, testified in support of HB

413. In response to Representative Ranras' previous question
he said the cigarette conpanies have been |looking for and
expecting this legislation for sonme tine. Essentially, he

expl ai ned, the self-extinguishing cigarette is a sinple device.
He said it is slightly smaller in circunference and the tobacco
is nore |oosely packed. The additional band of cigarette paper
that is around it is called a "speed bunp.” He indicated that
there are a nunber of things that can be done to cause a
cigarette to automatically extinguish. He told comittee
nmenbers they could expect to hear a lot of testinony related to
the nunber of fires, injuries, and deaths that occur from
i nproperly discarded cigarettes. M. Goodrich said Al aska could
expect between a 33-40 percent reduction in the nunber of fires
started in this nmanner and, by extension, the nunber of I|ives
| ost would also be reduced. He said there are alternatives,
such as having a nmandatory zero-square-foot ordinance; however,
it 1s an expensive proposition. He concluded by expressing his
appreciation of the commttee's wllingness to address this
i ssue.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 5- February 9, 2006



8:20: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if a chemcal is added to pipe
t obacco to make it stop burning.

8:20: 37 AM

MR. GOCDRI CH answered no, and he indicated that the question to
ask would be what conmpanies do to cigarettes to keep them
burning. By engineering a cigarette to burn down whether or not
it is being snoked, the cigarette conpanies nmake nore noney.
The tobacco conpanies were never able to engineer pipe tobacco
so that it would continue to burn conpletely down in the bow .

8:21: 20 AM

JACK KRILL, Fire Chief, Central WMtanuska Fire Departnent,
testified in support of HB 413. He reveal ed his background and

education in fire protection and safety engineering. He said
cigarettes left burning are a serious fire problem in the
nati on. He offered the following facts about cigarette-ignited

fires: Cigarettes are the |leading cause of fatal hone fires in
the U S., representing 25 percent of all fire deaths. Annually,
approximately 1,000 people in the U S die fromfires started by
cigarettes, and an additional 3,000 are injured. More than 100
victinms that die each year are children and nonsnokers. Two out

of five fire victinms are 65 years of age or older. Cgarette
ignited fires cause nore than $6 billion in property damage
every year; in 1997 alone, there were 130,000 cigarette-rel ated

fires in the U S.

MR. KRILL said Alaska has a chance to change those frightening

statistics through the passage of HB 413. The proposed
| egislation would save lives in Alaska and likely lead to
significant advances in public safety throughout the country, he
sai d. The bill would require that all cigarettes marketed and
sold in Alaska be fire-safe, which he explained neans they would
have a reduced propensity to burn when |eft wunattended. M.
Krill explained that the typical scenario for a cigarette-

ignited fire is the delayed ignition of furniture or clothing
after a signature has been dropped or forgotten by a carel ess
snoker .

8:24:40 AM

MR. KRILL echoed the testinmony of M. Goodrich regarding the
design changes that nake up fire-safe cigarettes, adding that

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2006



t he paper used would be | ess porous, and there would be no added
citrates in the paper. He related that a recently released
report out of New York noted that annual fire deaths blamed on
cigarettes have fallen by one third since that state's fire-safe
cigarette legislation went into effect.

8:25:31 AM

WARREN B. CUM NGS, Fire Chief, Gty of Fairbanks; President,
Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA), testified on behalf of
the 129 nenbers of AFCA in support of HB 413. The proposed
| egislation, he said, will prohibit the sale, manufacture, and
distribution of cigarettes in Alaska that do not neet the fire-
safe standards established by the Anmerican Society of Testing of
Mat eri al s. M. Cummings reported that careless snoking is the
| eading cause of fire deaths in Alaska; the fires caused by
carel ess snoking have resulted in 27.6 [percent] of all fire
deaths in Al aska between 1995-2004, killing 45 people in the
state during that time period.

8:27:39 AM

CAROL R REED, President, Alaska State Firefighters Association,
had her witten testinony [included in the committee packet]
presented by Mchael Tilly. The testinony read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

The Alaska State Firefighters Association supports
House Bill 413, introduced by Representative Reggie
Joule, legislation relating to cigarette fire safety.

Cigarettes are the [nunber] 1 cause of fatal fires in
the U S, taking 700 to 800 lives a year. Annual |y,
property |osses from fires caused by cigarettes run

into the hundreds of mllions of dollars. Statistical
data of fire-related death in Al aska parallels those
of the U.S.

The State of New York introduced simlar |egislation
in 2004. Al though it is too wearly to draw
conclusions, trends show a significant reduction in
loss of life and property as a result of the reduced
nunber of fires caused by cigarettes. Wth cigarettes
related to 25% of the cause of fatal fires in Al aska,
we believe safe cigarette legislation in A aska would
save Al askan |ives.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 9, 2006



In addition to saving Al askan lives and property, the
safest fire for Alaska's energency responders is the
one that was prevented.

M CHAEL TILLY, Fire Chief, Cty of Kenai; Menber, Al aska Fire
Chi efs Association (AFCA), told the commttee that he is also a
menber of the Alaska State Firefighters Association (ASFA). M.
Tilly concurred wwith Ms. Reed's testinony, and he said HB 413 is
an inportant piece of |egislation. He indicated that sone
people think snokers made the choice to snoke [thereby
increasing their chances of a <cigarette-related injury];
however, he pointed out that nonsnokers are dying in these
fires, as well. He concluded, "So, | think we need to renenber
everybody else that's involved in this issue, not just them"

8:30: 36 AM
GARY POWNELL, Director State Fire Marshall, Central Ofice,

Division of Fire Prevention, Departnent of Public Safety,
testified in support of HB 413. He said the division has been

interested in this issue for sone tine. He echoed M. Tilly's
corments regarding the fact that there are other victins,
besi des the snokers, who are affected by carel ess snoking. He

recollected hearing that there are approximately 800 people a
year who die from snoking-related fires. For exanple, in 2002
760 peopl e died, and 200 of those were not snokers.

MR. POWNELL brought up argunents that may be heard against [the
bill] and the reasons why those argunments do not hold true.
First, he said sone people say that there really is no such
thing as a cigarette that reduces the risk of a fire started
t hrough careless cigarette use; however, that claim has already
been dispelled by the fact that those cigarettes are already

bei ng sol d. Second, he noted that sone say state laws are
unnecessary because U.S. Congress is about to pass a nationa
bill. M. Powell said, "W just sinply can't wait for this
runmor that they mght be doing sonething, because in reality
t hey' ve been working on this since ... [1979], and we've seen no
results yet." Third, M. Powell said sonme people claimthis is

just an anti-snoking canpaign; however, he said no one is
telling people not to snoke, but to be safer while doing so.

8:33:37 AM
MR. POWELL continued highlighting and then countering existing

argunents against legislation such as HB 413. He said the
commttee may hear people say that it is not yet known whether

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2006



such a neasure will actually save lives. Conversely, he noted,
the National Fire Protection Association has conducted studies
to show [that legislation related to the burning capability of
cigarettes] will save lives. M. Powell said there is about six
months of solid data out of New York show ng approximately a 33
percent reduction in fatalities. He said there is sonme lag tine
in reporting and the division is anxiously awaiting a full year
of dat a.

MR. POWNELL noted that sonme people claim that this |egislation
wi Il make cigarettes nore toxic; however, the Harvard School of
Public Health conducted extensive studies on the products of
conmbustion released fromthe new cigarettes and found that there

IS no increase in the hazard content of these cigarettes. He
added, "They did detect mninmal increases in sone of the
conpounds being released, but no significant health issues at
all." He noted that those studies will be available in a few

days if the commttee should wish to see them At one point

M. Powell said, the industry was saying it didn't know how to
make such cigarettes, but it is making them now  Another claim
heard recently is that there is not enough of the paper required
to construct the cigarettes, but manufacturers have net the
demand in New York and are now gearing up to neet the demand in
other states. He remarked that some have tried to say that this
| egi sl ation discrimnates against the Mom and Pop retailers by

making things difficult. To that argunment, M. Powell said,
"It's sean ess: they get the cigarettes in, they sell the
cigarettes, | mean ... it makes no difference. |It's |like having

a Baby Ruth candy bar on the shelf today, and tonorrow it's a
different Baby Ruth with a little red stripe on the pack
That's just one of the efforts that the industry wll use to try
torally support.”

MR PONELL said the conmttee my hear that upholstered
furniture and mattresses are the real problem He admtted that
they are part of the problem He said, as M. (oodrich
suggested, one way to solve that problem is to nandate
residential sprinklers, but that would be costly and difficult
to set as public policy. The other solution would be to
regul ate uphol stered furniture and mattresses and adopt a strict
standard, but he indicated that that would be costly to the
i ndustry, my be nore difficult to inplenent, and would
definitely take Ilonger to adopt than the neasure already
avai | abl e.

8:37:26 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 9, 2006



MR. POWNELL said another argunent is that the use of alcohol and
drugs is the real problem because people drink, snoke, and drop
a cigarette, which starts a fire. He acknow edged that that
certainly is part of the problem - alcohol use is involved in

67-68 percent of fatal fires - but changing the burning
capabilities of cigarettes is easier than trying to address the
use of alcohol. Finally, M. Powell stated that sonme people say

an uneducated public nmay be the problem He relayed that the
division does its best to educate people about the hazards of
activities that lead to fires and death and will continue to do
so; however, he said that would not have as imredi ate an inpact
that a safe-cigarette bill would have. He stated that he
doesn't know of anyone who would be negatively affected by the
bill, and he concluded, "There are just too nany positives to
not support [the bill]."

8:38: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how the bill would inpact cigarette
sal es conducted through the Internet.

8:39:11 AM

MR. POWNELL said he thinks there is sone l|language in the bil
regarding Internet sales, but he deferred further response to
the bill's sponsor. He commented that there is one exception
for mlitary installations.

8:39:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 7, lines 12-
13, which read as foll ows:

(e) The state fire marshal and the attorney

general nmay enforce the penalties established under

this section.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Is that wthin your nornal
description; do you force the penalties, normally, in other
parts of the | aw?"
8:40: 43 AM
MR. PONELL answered yes.

8:40:48 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -10- February 9, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to the definition of "cigarette”
on page 8, lines 24-29, which read as foll ows:

(1) "cigarette" means any roll for snoking,
made wholly or in part of tobacco, irrespective of
size or shape and irrespective of whether the tobacco
is flavored, adulterated, or mxed wth another
ingredient, if the roll has a wapper or cover made of
paper or another material, wunless the wapper is
wholly or in the greater part nade of tobacco and the
roll weighs over three pounds for each one thousand
ci garettes;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he contrasted that definition with
the general definition of cigarette in revenue code, found in AS
43.50.170(2), and there seens to be a difference. He said the

| anguage added to the bill that is not in regulation is: "and
the roll weighs over three pounds for each one thousand
cigarettes". He asked M. Powell if he knew why this |anguage
isin the bill and not in the general definition.

MR POVWELL said he does not know.
8:41: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the penalty
section on page 7, [lines 9-11], subsection (d), which read:

(d)y If a person violates a provision of this
chapter and a civil penalty is not set for the
violation, the person is subject to a civil penalty
not to exceed $1,000 for each violation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to conpare that
| anguage with that on page 4, lines 3-7, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 18. 74. 080. Certification requirenent. A
manuf acturer shall certify in witing to the state
fire marshal that each brand of cigarette listed in
the certificate has been tested under AS 18.74.030 and
satisfies the testing standard in AS 18.74.030(d), or
has been tested under AS 18.74.050 and satisfies a
standard equi val ent to t he standard in AS
18. 74. 030(d) .

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -11- February 9, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that the only penalty is a
civil one. He said the sanme is true on page 7, lines 5-8, which
read as foll ows:

(c) In addition to any other penalty prescribed
by law, a person engaged in the manufacture of
cigarettes who knowingly nakes a false certification
under AS 18.74.080 is subject to a civil penalty not
to exceed $10,000 for each false certification.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regardi ng the | anguage on page 5, line
3, suggested requiring that the manufacturer shall certify in
witing "under oath". He asked M. Powell, "Do you think there
m ght be some Dbenefit in making this, In addition, a
m sdenmeanor ?"

8:43:31 AM
MR. PONELL responded that there m ght be sone advantage to that.
8:43:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that there would have to be sone
conform ng | anguage on page 7.

8:44: 14 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO said he is trying to nmake sense of how the
cigarette will be nore | oosely packed but have | ess toxins.
8:44:. 47 AM

MR. POWNELL suggested that the study that was done is not flawed,
but that the entire product was neasured, not just the tobacco.
He said he could get a copy of study or provide an expert
w tness who was "the key to passing this in New York."

8:45: 43 AM
MR. POWELL, in response to a question from Vice Chair Gatto,
reviewed the make up and purpose of the previously nentioned
speed bunp.
8:46: 09 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO, in response to a comment from Representative
Ranras, said he had asked M. Powell whether this new type of

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -12- February 9, 2006



cigarette would change the habits of snokers, for exanple,
requiring them to drag harder, deeper, or nore often, and M.
Powel | indicated to him that the snoker would not notice a
di fference between the current and "safe" cigarette.

MR. PONELL confirned that he has heard testinony of snokers who
had a preconceived idea that the cigarette would be different,
but in the end stated that they could tell no difference.

8:46:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS expressed concern that people - perceiving
snoking as safer - would in turn snoke nore cigarettes per day.

8:47:08 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO related that many fires start because soneone
who was sitting or lying on a couch, drinking and snoking,
flicked some ashes away at 2:00 a.m, but the ashes didn't start
the fire until 4:00 a.m He asked, "Wuld the safe cigarette
prevent that?"

8:48: 29 AM
MR. POWELL replied:

That's exactly the scenario that this would prevent.
The idea is, as you said, it has to lay there for
gquite sone tinme to actually ignite a nmattress, the
conforter, the easy chair, the recliner - whatever the
person's in. And the idea is this wll actually self-
extinguish before it sets there that long to start a
fire, and it's precisely the issue we're trying to
sol ve here.

8:49:02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS, in regard to Vice Chair Gatto's exanple
said he thinks that that late at night there doesn't have to be
[ al cohol] involved; sonmebody could just be drinking a soda and
have the sanme thing happen.

8:49:35 AM
VICE CHAIR GATTO said that's true, but statistically it seens to

be "a can of beer." He said another factor is that snokers tend
to have a wastebasket next to the couch and just flick the

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -13- February 9, 2006



cigarette into the basket. Hours | ater the wastebasket is on
fire. He tal ked about the drastic injuries from fires. He
stated, "To see burn victinms who survive is to see sonmeone who
is truly devastated about the result of the fire, in addition to
the people who are grieving |osses.” He predicted that the
commttee would be passing the bill, but noted that there were
sonme nore people to testify.

8:50: 14 AM

JEFF JOHNSON, President, Western Fire Chiefs Association (WCA),
testified on behalf of A aska and nine other western states
[affiliated with] the International Association of Fire Chiefs
(1 AFC) . He echoed the nessage of previous testifiers that
cigarettes are one of the leading causes of fires and this type
of legislation is "having a statistical inpact.” On behalf of
the association, he urged the conmttee to pass HB 413. He
concluded, "I thank you for the opportunity ... as a non-Al askan
for you to accept ny testinony on behalf of your state and its
menbership in our association.”

8:52:15 AM

MR, JOHNSON, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said he doesn't know whether HB 413 is based on the
New York nodel. Not wi t hstanding that, he said WCA is asking
the 10 western states to introduce legislation that is based on
the New York nodel bill, "and in talking to our partners at the
coalition, ... this bill appears to work and is close enough to
that nodel . " He deferred to Andrew MQire for further
response.

8:53:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated for record that the sponsor and
his staff were nodding and telling himthat HB 413 was based on
the New York and California nodels. He said he wants to know if
there is anything from other state laws that Al aska ought to
incorporate in order to pass the best bill possible.

8:53:45 AM

ANDREW MGU RE testified on behalf of the National Fire
Protection Association, based in Massachusetts, in support of HB

413. He stated his wunderstanding that Representative Joule's
staff used the language from the California bill to create HB
413; however, the California nodel, and nost of the other

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -14- February 9, 2006



states' related bills - with rare mnor exceptions - are based

on the New York bill. He said that is deliberate, because "the
last thing that we would want to do is have the cigarette
manufacturers have to conply to different standards.” M.

McCGuire revealed that he has been working on this issue for
al nost 30 years.

8:55: 38 AM
MR. MGU RE, regarding Representative Ranras' previously stated

concern, said the Harvard School of Public Health conducted
studies to see if fire-safe cigarettes are nore toxic or nake

peopl e snoke nore. It was found that the snoking rate did not
increase or decrease in New York and nei ghboring Massachusetts
conpared to prior years. Furthernore, testing nore than 20

conpounds, no mpjor difference in toxicity was found between
fire-safe cigarettes and regular cigarettes within the sane
br ands. He added, "And these are cancer researchers; these are
people who are looking at this from that health point of view,
not from the fire point of view They are satisfied that a

fire-safe cigarette - a cigarette that has slightly thicker
paper on a couple of ... bands on the ... tobacco colum - .
[ does] not cause nore toxicity to the snoker.” He said that
information is public. He concluded, "If you do hear testinony
from the tobacco industry, you'll probably hear the opposite of
what |'msaying, but | let the science stand for itself."

8:58:17 AM

MR MGJURE, in response to questions from Representative

G uenberg, specified that he has been enployed by the Nationa
Fire Protection Association (NFPA) as the director of the
nati onal canpaign for fire-safe cigarettes, and the NFPA has
been around for over a century and educates the public on fire
prevention, and establishes electrical codes that |lead to the
prevention of fires that fire departnents use around the world.
He offered his understanding that NFPA was initially forned by
the insurance industry and the fire service. In response to a
followup question from Representative Guenberg, M. MQire
said he is not an attorney, but the reason that he is involved
is that he suffered a burn injury as a child, In response to
further questions from Representative Guenberg, he said he is
famliar with other statutes simlar to HB 413 and he thinks
Representative Guenberg's earlier suggestion to require [the
manuf acturers' certifications] to be done under oath is a good
one and would not render Alaska's legislation different than
that of New York or other states. He said it is the prerogative

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 15- February 9, 2006



of the legislature to define what type of penalties it wants to
assi gn. He stated, "The real issue in conformty, state-to-
state, is that the ... fire safety perfornmance standard and
everything around that is identical, so that the product itself
can neet each state's standard the sane way."

9:00: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. McQuire if he is aware if any
commerce clause or preenption issues have been raised. He
clarified, "Are states free to legislate in this area, or are
t here any federal problenms?"

9: 00: 35 AM

MR. McGUI RE replied:

The first tine that was rai sed was when the State of

Maryl and introduced the fire-safe cigarette bill in
1984. And then the tobacco institute raised the
commerce clause as a problem ... The state attorney

general of Mryland issued an opinion that there was
no comrerce cl ause issue, nor was there any preenption
i ssue, and since 1984, the tobacco industry has never
rai sed that issue. And there can't be preenption,
because there's no federal legislation in this arena
regarding fire safety and cigarettes, so, there's no
law to preenpt.

MR MGURE, in response to a request from Representative
Gruenberg, said he would send a copy of the Maryland attorney
general's opinion to himby facsimle.

9:01: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that there is an existing
definition of "cigarette" in Al aska's revenue code that 1is
al nrost identical to the definition on page 8, |Ilines 28-29,

except that the latter definition contains additional |anguage
[text provided previously].

9:02:10 AM
MR. McGQUI RE explained that the additional |anguage was inserted

"in the iterations of creating the New York bill" to include
smal | cigars.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 16- February 9, 2006



9:02: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "The reason |'m asking is not
because it's overi ncl usi ve, but because it m ght be
underi ncl usi ve. "

9:02: 50 AM

MR. McGUI RE responded, "The data shows that those kinds of snall
cigars and regular cigars are not a fire problem they typically
sel f-extinguish regardl ess of any technology or any purposeful
act of the tobacco conpanies, so that's why | think they were
excl uded. "

9:03: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 9, line 21,
whi ch read:

(A) giving cigarettes as sanples,
prizes, or gifts; or

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed that he had brought a bill to the
| egi sl ature years ago which did not pass, but which would have
made it illegal to do "tobacco sanpling.” He said he was told
that that whole practice is illegal in sone jurisdictions. He
asked M. MQuire if he is aware of that.

9:04: 06 AM

MR MGURE said he has not heard of a statewi de or national
standard in that regard, thus, it nust be only jurisdictional.

9:04: 26 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked that M. MGuire and M. Johnson send
t heir background information by facsimle to the bill sponsor.

9: 05: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he would like to know how the bill
woul d address the practice of buying cigarettes via the Internet
t hat are manuf actured over seas.

9: 06: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -17- February 9, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS offered his understanding that a person
cannot buy cigarettes over the Internet, because they are
"regul ated by state stanps.”

9:06: 26 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO stated his belief that there are people who
continue to try, but are "chased down by state authorities ...."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said, "I have a personal friend who does.™

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated, "It's illegal to do it in the
first place."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the House Special Committee
on Ways and Means had heard testinony on the issue a couple
years ago.

9:06:41 AM
MARCGE LARSON, Anerican Lung Association, testified as foll ows:

As a public health advocate, | am always |eery of the
word "safe" in any way related to cigarettes, there
being no safe use of tobacco, and |I'm sure that's what
a lot of folks expected ne to say. That said, if we
can reduce the toll of tobacco deaths and reduce
wildfires and wldfire snoke by legislating self-
extingui shing cigarettes, Anmerican Lung Association of
Al aska supports that and applauds the firefighter's
strong advocacy on this bill. Qur support, however
is dependent on the Alaska statute strictly follow ng
the strong nodel |egislations of other states, and on
no additions being anended to this bill.

9:07: 38 AM
VI CE CHAI R GATTO cl osed public testinony.
9: 07: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS expressed his support of the Alaska Fire
St andar ds Counci | .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO reopened public testinony for an additiona
guesti on.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 18- February 9, 2006



9:08:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said | anguage on page 4, lines 18-19
relates to cigarettes that cannot be tested by the generally
established nethod in national standards. He asked M. MCQuire,
"What kind of a cigarette couldn't be tested, and why not ?"

9:09:16 AM

MR MGURE explained that 12-15 vyears ago, R J. Reynolds
introduced a "snokeless cigarette.” He said it consisted of an
al um num tube wapped on the outside with tobacco and white
paper, filled inside with pellets of nicotine, and a "burning
coal at the end that burned and, in a sense, deconposed the
nicotine for people to get nicotine." He said nothing ever
actually burned; "once you snoked one of those snokeless
cigarettes, you were left with a long tube." He said that
product would not cause fires, because the coal was hidden from
contact with any surface; however, it wouldn't apply to the
current ASTM International nethod of extinguishnment "where you
pl ace the cigarette on pieces of paper and watch whether or not
there [are] ignitions.” He said [the |anguage on page 4, lines
18-19] is there to take into account bizarre technology that may
conme fromthe cigarette that won't cause ignition but wn't pass
t he ASTM st andar d.

[ That was the last of the public testinony.]
9:10:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE told the commttee that a cigarette-ignited
fire that occurred "as early as 1929" cane to the attention of
soneone in the U S. Congress. The National Bureau of Standards
devel oped the technology for self-snubbing cigarettes in 1932,
after three years of research. He said the technology for fire-
safe cigarettes has been around a long tine, and he urged the
committee to pass HB 413.

9:12: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Joule if he would
support his previously suggested anendnents. In response to a
request from Representative Joule, he reviewed that the first
amendnent would include changes to the |[|anguage on page 5,
between lines 3-7, page 5, |line 31, and page 7, lines 5-8, and
woul d concern civil penalties added in addition to any other

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -19- February 9, 2006



crimnal penalties and would "allow it to be false swearing,
which is a m sdeneanor."”

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said he would have no objection to that
amendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his second idea for an anendnent
isinregard to page 6, lines 24-27, which read:

Sec. 18.74.160. Penalties for violations. (a) A
manuf acturer or another person who know ngly sells or
offers to sell cigarettes other than through retail
sale and in violation of this chapter is subject to a
civil penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each sale.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is not sure if the words "in
this state" should be added between the words "cigarettes"” and
"ot her". He explained that he wants to ensure the |anguage is
| egal because "we don't have any jurisdiction outside the
state.”

9:14: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE suggested that Representative G uenberg
could "take a | ook between now and [the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee hearing on HB 413] on the second possibility."

9:15:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
fol |l ows:

On page 5, line 3:
Between "certify" and "in"
| nsert "under oath"

On page 5, line 31:
Bet ween "submit" and "its
| nsert "under oath"

On page 7, line 5:
Bet ween "ot her" and "penalty"
Insert "civil or crimnal"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would leave it up to the bil

drafters to decide whether or not the third portion of
Conceptual Amendnent 1 is necessary.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 20- February 9, 2006



9:17:16 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked if there was any objection to Conceptua
Amendnent 1. There being none, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

9:18: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 413, as anended, out of
conmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection CSHB 413(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 349- COW SSI ON ON LEG COWP. & ALLOMANCES

9:18: 53 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO announced that the last order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 349, "An Act relating to legislator salary and
benefits; establishing the G tizens' Commi ssion on Legislative
Salary and Benefits and defining its powers and duties and
abolishing the State Oficers Conpensation Conm ssion; and
providing for an effective date by repealing secs. 9 and 12, ch.
124, SLA 1986."

9:19:31 AM

JACQUELINE TUPQU, Staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch

Al aska State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Wyhrauch,
sponsor of HB 349, told the commttee that the suggestions from
the commttee at the last bill hearing were incorporated into a
conmi ttee substitute.

9:19:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 349, Version 24-1LS1391\X, Wayne, 2/8/06

as a work draft. There being no objections, Version X was
before the commttee.

9:20:18 AM
M5. TUPQU said the sponsor, in response to a request from
Representative G uenberg at the prior bill hearing, [reinstated]

| anguage pertaining to the date by which the Al aska Legislative

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -21- February 9, 2006



Counci | would have to submt its final report to the
| egi sl ature, as shown on page 4, line 13, as foll ows:

during the first 30 [10] days of a legislative
sessi on.

M5. TUPQU, regarding another change made, directed attention to
[ page 4, beginning on |ine 16], which read:

The Al aska Legislative Council shall publish the final
report nmade avail abl e under AS 39. 23. 240(d)

M5. TUPQU explained that previously the |anguage had been
perm ssive and read "may" instead of "shall"

9:21:15 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO, after ascertaining that there was no one to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:21: 43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER ci ted AS 39. 23.240(a), which read:

Sec. 39.23.240. Duties of the comm ssion.

(a) The commission shall review the salaries,
benefits, and all owances of nenbers of the |egislature
and prepare a report on its findings at |east once
every two years, but not nore frequently than every
year. The comm ssion shall notify the |egislature that
the report is avail able.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if what the conmttee is doing now
is working to "separate out who decides salaries from benefits
and al | owances. "

M5. TUPQU responded, "If you're referring to the current
statutes, the current statutes are not being inplenented because
they're unconstitutional."

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d she understands that.

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked Ms. Tupou, "Could you tell us what the
current statute that's unconstitutional is?"

9:22: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -22- February 9, 2006



M5. TUPQU answered, "Yeah, the current statute provides for a
simlar program in the way that it's a conmssion, but it has
menbers of the executive branch in there, and so, that sort of
vi ol at es t he separation of power s. And so, it's
unconstitutional, and so, wthout a constitutional anmendnent,
it's never been inplenented since it got on the books in 1986."

9:23: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER of fered her wunderstanding that under the
proposed bill the salary of the legislators would stil
ultimately be determ ned by the Al aska Legislative Council.

9:23: 23 AM

M5. TUPQU confirnmed that is correct. She said the legislature
has to have authority over its salary; "any other change to that
woul d be unconstitutional."

9:23: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER proffered, "Except that [the President of
the Senate] and the Speaker of House would be getting this
additional 'bunp' that's not ... considered and responded by the
[ Al aska Legislative Council]."

9:23:56 AM

MS. TUPOU answered that's correct. She said the reason for that
is that, under the Al aska State Constitution, the aforenentioned
two positions are separated to receive additional conpensation.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked, "And under the constitution, then,
it ... needs to be determned differently from other salary
matt ers?"

M5. TUPQU directed attention to page 1, [line 14] of Version X,
whi ch shows that the anmpunt that the President of the Senate and
t he House Speaker has been changed from $500 a year to $500 a
nont h.

9:24: 39 AM
VICE CHAIR GATTO asked if the constitution directs the
| egislature to address the question of the salaries of the

President of the Senate and the House Speaker, or "sonmehow we
interpreted that."

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 23- February 9, 2006



9:24:55 AM

M5. TUPQU conjectured that since there is specific reference in
the Alaska State Constitution that the aforenentioned wll

receive conpensation, while "other | egi sl at ors™ are not
menti oned specifically, "that's why it would be initially in the
statute.” She added, "And then we've anended it in our bill

because it was in the original statute."”
9:25:20 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked Ms. Tupou if she is saying that the only
people entitled to any kind of conpensation are the President of
the Senate and the House Speaker, and the rest of the
| egislators are "subject to [the Alaska] Legislative Council's
desires."

M5. TUPQU deferred the question to Dan Wayne.
9:25:29 AM

DAN WAYNE, Attorney, Legislative Legal and Research Services,
referred to Article 2, Section 7, of the Alaska State
Constitution, which read as foll ows:

SECTI ON 7. Salary and Expenses. Legislators shal
recei ve annual salaries. They may receive a per diem
al l omance for expenses while in session and are
entitled to travel expenses going to and from
sessions. Presiding officers may receive additional
conpensat i on.

9: 26: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Wayne if there would be any
problem legally in having the additional conpensation of the
presiding officers handled in the same way "that we're proposing
salaries be handled going through the comm ssion and then
t hrough [ Legi sl ative] Council."

9:26:42 AM
MR. WAYNE answered no, because ultimately it is the Al aska
Legislative Council that is making the decision about what the

salary and benefits wll be. He stated, "Inserting the
comm ssion into that process, wth respect to salary and

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 24- February 9, 2006



benefits, ... allows a citizens' group to study it, rmake
recomrendations, and so forth, which becone effective if the
[ Al aska] Legislative Council and the legislature decide not to
: make any changes to them" M. Wayne indicated that the
decision not to do anything is, in essence, "an act."

9:27:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opi ned t hat

in the interest of ful
di scl osure and public participation, al

the sal aries, including

"any additional,” should go through the sanme process of a
citizens' commission and be possibly amended then confirned by
the Al aska Legislative Council. She asked Ms. Tupou what the

sponsor's response would be to an anmendnent that would delete
the provision related to additional salary for the President of
the Senate and the House Speaker.

9:28: 31 AM
M5. TUPOU said that she could not support or oppose any
anmendnents proposed during the neeting because the bill sponsor

woul d not have had a chance to consi der them ahead of tine.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 9:28:41 AMto 9:28: 46 AM

9:30: 16 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO in response to a request from Representative
Gruenberg, recapped Representative Gardner's anmendnment i dea.

9: 30: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that she has no objection to
the aforementioned positions receiving an increase in salary,
but she doesn't know that they should be handled differently
than the ot her issues.

9:30: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Wayne for suggested |anguage to
use in an anendnent that would require that the salaries of the
President of the Senate and the House Speaker would be
determned in the same manner as other salary adjustments, which
woul d be through the comm ssion's recommendations and through
the Al aska Legi sl ative Council.

9:31: 32 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 25- February 9, 2006



MR. VWAYNE suggested deleting the sentence [beginning on page 1,
line 13, through page 2, line 1], which read as foll ows:

The president of the senate and the speaker of the
house of representatives are each entitled to an
additional $500 a nonth [YEAR] during tenure of
of fice.

MR. WAYNE al so suggested addi ng | anguage under Section 4 so that
it would be another duty of the Al aska Legislative Council to
set the anmpbunt. Alternatively, he suggested that |anguage could
be added under Section 10 to charge the conm ssion with the task
of determ ning whether additional conpensation is paid to the
President of the Senate and the House Speaker, and, if so, how
much it woul d be.

9:32:41 AM
VICE CHAIR GATTO directed attention to the sentence begi nning on
page 1, line 13 [text provided previously], and suggested

changi ng | anguage within the sentence to read:

may each be entitled, at the discretion of Legislative
Council to an additional salary of

9:32: 58 AM

MR. WAYNE responded that Vice Chair Gatto's suggestion would
acconplish the sane thing as striking the sentence and "putting

a sentence under Section 4," but it would still |eave the
comm ssion out of the decision, leaving it up to the Al aska
Legi sl ative Council. He said, "I suppose it just depends on
whether or not it's the will of the legislature to have ... the

commi ssion study it and make recomrendations to the council and
then have the council act, or to just have the council handle it
(indisc. -- paper shuffling) fromthat.” He said he thinks one
i ssue is whether additional conpensation, as shown in Article 2,
Section 7, is neant to be the same as salary, or if it is an
al | owance. He said that as he was drafting the bill, he was
t hi nki ng of additional conpensation as all owance.

9:34: 23 AM

VI CE CHAI R GATTO suggested that the term "al |l owance" should only
apply during session, because that is the only tinme when [the

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 26- February 9, 2006



President of the Senate and the House Speaker] serve in an
of ficial capacity "on the podium™

9:34:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS disagreed with Vice Chair Gatto's remark

He said the work load of the President of the Senate and the
House Speaker doesn't dimnish that nuch during interim and may
even i ncrease.

9:35: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved Conceptual Anmendnment 1, to nake the
al l omance be considered by the comission and wultimtely
determ ned by the Al aska Legi sl ative Council.

9: 35: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS objected to Conceptual Amendment 1. He
expl ai ned:

| think it's pretty obvious by the salary of $2001 a
month that this legislature is not overpaid, and it's

been that way for a nunber of years. And as far as
public participation goes, if a pay raise would have
to come through in a bill, there's plenty of tine for
all kinds of public input. ... \Wether the public
likes it or [ doesn' t] like it, they have an

opportunity at us every two years in the House. And
|"mnot in favor of setting up a conm ssion outside of

this body to ... recommend our pay at all. | think
that's our job; | think that's what we were elected to
do, and then stand before the people and see if they
accept it.

9: 36: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER reiterated that the question really is
not whether [certain nenbers of the body] should get nore or
| ess, but whether that decision should be handled any
differently than the decisions for the salary benefits and
al l omances "for the rest of us."

9:37:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS reenphasized that his point is that "the
deci si on should be handled in this body and only in this body."

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE -27- February 9, 2006



9:37:23 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO said that's a separate question. He suggested
that Representative Elkins is really saying that "we shouldn't
even have this bill."

9:37:40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS responded, "Basically, yes."

VICE CHAIR GATTO said allowing the legislature to establish its
own salaries would look inherently unfair to the public, thus,
he said he thinks having a recommendati on from a separate ground
is a good idea. He said Representative Gardner is proposing
that that separate group not only nake a recomendation for the
legislature's salaries, but also for "any bunp for the speaker
and the president."

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER concurred wth Vice Chair (Gtto's
estimation of the intent of Conceptual Amendnent 1.

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked if there were any other objections to
Conceptual Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN objected, then renoved his objection [when

it was clarified that Representative Elkins still objected.]

9: 38: 53 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner and Gatto
voted in favor of Conceptual Amendnent 1. Representati ves Lynn
and Elkins voted against it. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 1

failed to be adopted by a vote of 2-2.
9:39:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER restated her concern regarding ful
di scl osure and public participation, even bearing in mnd the
previ ous remarks from Representative Elkins. She said she would
like the final report from the citizens' commi ssion on
| egi sl ative benefits described in Section 12, line 13 [under the
old bill].

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i ndi cated that she would like to offer an
anendnent that would require that the report the conmm ssion

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 28- February 9, 2006



makes available to the Alaska Legislative Council be
si mul t aneously nmade avail able to the public.

9:41:29 AM
MR. WAYNE suggest ed:
On page 4, |line 10:

Between "to" and "the Al aska Legislative Council"
Insert "the public and”

9:41: 44 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked Representative Gardner if that would be
sufficient.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER answered, "That's great." [ Concept ual
Amendrent 2 was consi dered noved for adoption.]

9:42:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS offered his understanding that once the
report is distributed to the Alaska Legislative Council it is
avai l abl e to the public already.

9:42:19 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO said he doesn't think that is necessarily true.
He explained that the Al aska Legislative Council has information
on other things that are discussed and are under contract, thus,
information given to the council can be public docunent, but in
sonme instances is not. He said Representative Gardner wants to
delineate that question by specifying that "this docunent - not
all docunents - ... be available to the public.”

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS replied, "I think this docunment would be
anyway because it's not proprietary and the other one is."

9:42: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER relayed her concern is to ensure the
public knows exactly what the comm ssion recommends and
ultimately what the Alaska Legislative Council goes wth, and
she wants both those elenents "to be available wthout
guestion."

9:42: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 29- February 9, 2006



VICE CHAIR GATTO stated his agreenment wth Representative
El kins' remark that the Al aska Legislative Council "would not
hol d this as di scretionary i nformation anyway, " t hus,
[ Concept ual Arendnent 2] would not add any neasure of
accountability to the bill.

9:43:39 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r esponded:

You may very well be right [Vice Chair Gatto], but as
you explained earlier, it's very ... difficult for
| egislators to mnmake recommendations regarding their
own salary and benefits, and we're introducing this
bill, in part, to address that and have a process that
is open and allows input from other people, so that
ultimately what happens is clear and open. And | just
want to ensure that every part of that is clear and
open, so that afterwards we can't be accused of trying
to hide any part of the process.

9:44:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recommended erring on the side of public
di scl osure.

9:44: 18 AM

VICE CHAIR GATTO revi ewed Conceptual Anmendnment 2 and asked if
there was any objection.

9:44: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS objected for discussion purposes. He
admtted, "Sonetinmes | gristle when public disclosure cones up
because ... it ... inplies ... we wuld do sonmething illegal
and | don't believe we would do anything illegal.” He said, "I
do not believe for a mnute that this itemwould be held ... not
for public discretion by the [Al aska] Legislative Council." He

said he has a problemw th [ Conceptual Anmendnment 2].
9:45: 20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she does not intend to inply that

the Alaska Legislative Council would be anything less than
honorable at any step of the way, but she wants to ensure the

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 30- February 9, 2006



public that "we are naking every effort to be open about the
entire process of discussing possible raises, salaries, and
benefits."

9:46: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated that [Conceptual Amendnent 2]
may not be technically be necessary, but it would certainly

offer some assurance to the public. He told Representative
El kins he hopes he will reconsider his objection, because the
bill is not controversial, wll do no harm and wll offer

confidence to the public.
9:47. 17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS renoved hi s objection.

VICE CHAIR GATTO asked if there was any further objection to
Conceptual Amendnent 2. There being none, it was so ordered.

9:47: 47 AM
REPRESENTATI VE = GARDNER, in response to a request from
Representative G uenberg, reviewed the subject of the failed

Conceptual Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, after ascertaining that the vote on
Conceptual Anmendment 1 had been 2-2, asked if any commttee

menber would be willing to ask for a reconsideration so he could
vot e.
9:48: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for reconsideration to Conceptual
Amrendnent 1.

[ Di scussion took place regarding the rules of reconsideration,

whi ch nenbers had actually been present during the roll call
vote on Conceptual Anmendnent 1, and the timng of holding the
bill versus nmoving it through comittee.]

9:50: 48 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves G uenberg, Gatto,
and Gardner voted in favor of Conceptual Amendnent 1.
Representatives Elkins and Lynn voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopted by a vote of 3-2.

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 31- February 9, 2006



9:51:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report CSHB 349, Version 24-
LS1391\ X, Wayne, 2/8/06, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual reconmendati ons. There being no objection, CSHB
349(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Conmi ttee.

ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
9:53: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 32- February 9, 2006



